Leabharlann Náisiúnta na hÉireann National Library of Ireland

Collection List No. 114

PAPERS OF BRUCE ARNOLD

(MSS 41,342-41,477)

(Accession Nos. 5102, 6172)

Literary and journalistic papers of Bruce Arnold

Compiled by Antoinette Doran

Contents

Introduction 3

Bruce Arnold 3

The Papers 4

Published works 5

- I.i Non-fiction 5
 - I.i.1 Margaret Thatcher (1984) 5
 - I.i.2 What Kind of Country (1984) 6
 - I.i.3 The Scandal of Ulysses (1992) 7
 - I.i.4 Jack Yeats (1998) 8
- I.ii Fiction 11
 - I.ii.1 A Singer at the Wedding (1978) 11
 - I.ii.2 The Song of the Nightingale (1980) 11
 - I.ii.3 The Muted Swan (1981) 12
 - I.ii.4 Running to Paradise (1983) 12

II Other works 13

- II.i The Fan of Judgment (1993) 13
- II.ii A Most Confounded Tory (1995) 14

III Journalistic work 14

- III.i TCD Miscellany (edited by Arnold) 14
- III.ii Political articles by Arnold (1960s-1984) 14
- III.iii Charles Haughey (1974-2002) 15
- III.iv Northern Ireland (1980-2000) 15
- III.v Stardust fire (1981) 17
- III.vi Divorce, contraception and abortion (1971-2000) 18
- III.vii Other political material (1972-2001) 19

IV Telephone tapping material (1982-1986) 20

V Theatre 22

- V.i Dun Laoghaire Theatre Project (1993-1995) 22
- V.ii Theatre programmes, etc. 23

Introduction

Bruce Arnold

Bruce Arnold was born in London on 6 September 1936. He was one of five children. His father was a Lieutenant Commander in the Royal Navy. Educated at Kingham Hill School, Oxfordshire, he then completed two years of national service in the British army, serving in Western Germany with the Sixth Armoured Division. In 1957 he came to Ireland to study English and French at TCD. While at Trinity College, he served as editor of *TCD Miscellany* and as chairperson of the Dublin University Modern Languages Society.

Arnold began his journalistic career at *The Irish Times* in 1961, working as sub-editor, as well as writing for *The Guardian* from 1962-68. His work covers a broad spectrum of subjects, ranging from politics to theatre, literature, and culture. By the late 1960s he was a successful freelance journalist, working for newspapers, journals and periodicals in both Ireland and Britain, including *The Irish Press, The Sunday Independent, Hibernia*, and *Business and Finance*. He also edited *The Dubliner*, served as an advisor to the Federation of Irish Industries, wrote a version of the Third Programme for Economic Development, and became an established political commentator in radio and television.

In 1972 he joined the *Irish Independent* as parliamentary correspondent and political commentator. His column entitled 'Politics and Politicians' had a significant impact, culminating in the telephone tapping controversy in 1982. He also wrote a number of books concerning politics and political figures including biographies of Margaret Thatcher, Charles Haughey, and Jack Lynch. In 1986 he became London editor for the *Irish Independent* and in 1987 was appointed literary editor.

Arnold has also written extensively on art and literature, producing the first comprehensive study of Irish art, *A Concise History of Irish Art* (1969), and works on William Orpen, Mainie Jellett and Jack Yeats. In addition he has also produced four novels and the libretto for an opera about Jonathan Swift, *A Passionate Man*. He has a postgraduate degree of Doctor of Letters from the National University of Ireland, is an Honorary Fellow of Trinity College and a Fellow of the Royal Society of Literature. In 2003 he was made OBE 'for services to journalism and to British-Irish relations'.

In 1959 Arnold married Ysabel Mavis Cleave and has three children, Hugo, Samuel and Polly. Mavis Arnold is also a journalist, and has had an active role in organisations such as the Women's Political Association.

The Papers

The Bruce Arnold Papers were donated to the National Library in 1997, 2002 (acc. no. 5102) and 2004 (acc. no. 6172). The collection is comprised of manuscripts and typescripts of a number of Arnold's books, journalistic material relating predominantly to the early 1980's (particularly Charles Haughey, the Stardust fire and Northern Ireland), legal documents concerning the telephone tapping controversy in 1982, and material regarding his role as chairperson of The Dun Laoghaire Theatre Project. The collection also contains theatre programmes and related material from the Gate and Gaiety Theatres dating from 1937 onwards. At the request of Mr Arnold, three boxes of the papers are withheld from public consultation.

The papers are arranged as follows: non-fiction monographs, novels and other literary material, journalism including files re phone-tapping episode, and theatre. Within these categories records are arranged chronologically, with the exception of the thematic subdivisions in Group III ('Journalistic work').

Published works

Li Non-fiction

I.i.1 Margaret Thatcher (1984)

Margaret Thatcher: a Study in Power (London: Hamish Hamilton, 1984) References in bold are to the published text.

MS 41,342 /1-4 TS with MS alterations and change sheets.

/1: Preliminaries, including Prologue. [16] sheets. pp. 3-18.

/2: Part One: General Election, 1983. [91] sheets. pp. 19-98.

/3: Part Two: Winning. [104] sheets. pp. 99-161.

/4: Part Three: Power. [144] sheets. pp. 163-240.

MS 41,343 /1-5 TS with MS alterations.

/1: Preliminaries, including Prologue. 22 sheets. pp. 3-18.

/2: Part One: General Election, 1983. 120 sheets. pp. 19-98.

/3: Part Two: Winning. 87 sheets. pp. 99-161.

/4: Part Three: Power. 113 sheets. pp. 163-240.

/5: Part Four: The New, Happy Life. *47 sheets*. **pp. 241-274**.

MS 41,344 /1-5 TS with minor corrections.

/1: Preliminaries, including Prologue. 20 sheets. pp. 3-18.

/2: Part One: General Election, 1983. 119 sheets. pp. 19-98.

/3: Part Two: Winning. 87 sheets. **pp. 99-161**.

/4: Part Three: Power. 113 sheets. pp. 163-240.

/5: Part Four: The New, Happy Life. 47 sheets. pp. 241-274.

MS 41,345 /1-4 TS with minor corrections.

/1: Preliminaries, including Prologue. 17 sheets. pp. 3-18.

/2: Part One: General Election, 1983. 119 sheets. pp. 19-98.

/3: Part Two: Winning. 86 sheets. pp. 99-161.

/4: Part Three: Power. 89 sheets. pp. 163-240

MS 41,346 /1-2 Partial TS with minor corrections.

/1: Chapters 21 and 22. Sheets 308-338. pp. 220-240.

/2: Part Four: New Happy Life. Sheets [1], 339-385. pp. 241-274.

MS 41,347 TSS of Chapters 7 and 8. 4 copies of each chapter ([160] sheets).

pp. 71-98.

MS 41,348 Illustrative material and Captions. [9] sheets.

MS 41,349 Preliminaries, Summary, Epigraph, Notes. [11] sheets.

I.i.2 What Kind of Country (1984)

What Kind of Country: Modern Irish Politics, 1968-1983 (London: Jonathan Cape, 1984)

References in bold are to the published text.

MS 41,350	MS (dated December 1982). 'Part One', 'Chapters I-IV'. Does not
	directly correspond to chapters of published text. ca. 350 leaves.

MS 41,351 MS (dated January to May 1983). 'Prologue', chapter summaries, and 'Part Two': Chapters 1-3, 12-18' [i.e. 1 to 10 of published text]. ca. 420 leaves. pp. 9-91.

MS **41,352** MS (dated March/April 1983). 'Part Three', 'Chapters 19 to 30' [i.e. 11 to 22 of published text]. *ca. 500 leaves*. **pp. 92-194**.

MS 41,353 TS with MS alterations and corrections. Preliminaries (including Prologue), Chapters 1 to 27, and Notes. Contains additional chapters not in published text. 321 sheets. pp. 1-232.

MS 41,354 TS including 'Prologue' and 'Parts Two and Three': 'Chapters 9 to 23' [i.e. Chapters 1-15 of published text]. *166 sheets.* **pp. 9-129**.

MS 41,355 TS with MS alterations. Chapters 24-27. Not in published text. 27 *sheets*.

MS 41,356 TS including Preliminaries and 'Parts Two and Three: Chapters 9 to 23' [i.e. Chapters 1-15 of published text]. *162 sheets*. **pp. 9-129**.

MS 41,357	TS with MS alterations and publisher's annotations, including Preliminaries, Prologue, Chapters 1-24 (excluding 18 and 19), Postscript and notes. 295 sheets. pp. 1-232 .
MS 41,358	Complete proofs with MS annotations (excluding index). 243 sheets. pp. i-232 .
MS 41,359	TS with MS alterations and various notes, including Preliminaries, 'Prologue', and Chapters 16 to 27 (Chapters 24-27 not in published text). 83 sheets. pp. 130-211 .
MS 41,360	Assorted material including Contents Page, Index, Captions, Summary, notes and chapters, partial chapters, and illustrative material. 257 sheets.

I.i.3 The Scandal of Ulysses (1992)

The Scandal of Ulysses: The Sensational Life of a Twentieth-Century Masterpiece (London: Sinclair-Stevenson, 1991)
References in bold are to the published text.

MS 41,361	TS of Chapter One. 4 copies. 56 sheets. pp. 4-25.
MS 41,362	TS of Chapter Two. 4 copies. 38 sheets. pp. 26-41.
MS 41,363	TS of Chapter Three. 3 copies. 41 sheets. pp. 42-63.
MS 41,364	TS of Chapter Four. 3 copies. 36 sheets. pp. 64-83.
MS 41,365	TS of Chapter Five. 2 copies. 16 sheets. pp. 87-101.
MS 41,366	TS of Chapter Six. 2 copies. 20 sheets. pp. 102-119.
MS 41,367	TS of Chapter Seven. 2 copies. 16 sheets. pp. 127-139.
MS 41,368	TS of Chapter Eight. 1 copy. 14 sheets. pp. 140-171.

I.i.4 Jack Yeats (1998)

Jack Yeats (New Haven and London: Yale University Press, 1998) References in bold are to the published text.

```
MS 41,369 /1-15 Incomplete TS (1994).
```

/1: Prologue. [5] sheets. **pp. ix-x**.

/2: Chapter 1. 23 sheets. pp. 1-16.

/3: Chapter 2. 14 sheets. pp. 17-28.

/4: Chapter 3. 17 sheets. pp. 29-44.

/5: Chapter 4. 22 sheets. pp. 45-56.

/6: 'Chapter 11' [i.e. 10 of published text]. [15] sheets. pp. 133-151.

/7: 'Chapter 12' [i.e. 11 of published text]. [36] sheets. **pp. 152-165**.

/8: 'Chapter 13' [i.e. 12 of published text]. [29] sheets. pp. 166-184.

/9: 'Chapter 14' [i.e. 13 of published text]. [21] sheets. **pp. 185-201**.

10: 'Chapter 15' [i.e. 14 of published text]. [23] sheets. **pp. 202-216**.

/11: 'Chapter 16' [i.e. 15 of published text]. [35] sheets. **pp. 217-237**.

12: 'Chapter 17' [i.e. 16 of published text]. [29] sheets. **pp. 238-257**.

/13: 'Chapter 18' [i.e. 17 of published text]. [47] sheets. **pp. 259-292**.

/14: 'Chapter 19' [i.e. 18 of published text]. [37] sheets. pp. 293-321.

/15: 'Chapter 20' [i.e. 19 of published text]. [32] sheets. **pp. 323-356**.

MS 41,370 /1-22 TS with annotations by John Purser and Maurice Craig (1995).

- /1: 'Chapters 1 and 2' [i.e. 1 of published text]. 37 sheets. pp. 1-16.
- /2: 'Chapter 3' [i.e. 2 of published text]. 17 sheets. **pp. 17-28**.
- /3: 'Chapter 4' [i.e. 3 of published text]. 23 sheets. pp. 29-44.
- /4: 'Chapter 5' [i.e. 4 of published text]. 20 sheets. **pp. 45-56**.
- **/5:** 'Chapter 6' [i.e. 5 of published text]. 21 sheets. **pp. 57-67**.
- /6: 'Chapter 7' [i.e. 6 of published text]. [16] sheets. pp. 68-80.
- /7: 'Chapter 8' [i.e. 7 of published text]. 22 sheets. **pp. 81-99**.
- /8: 'Chapter 9' [i.e. 8 of published text]. 27 sheets. pp. 101-115.
- /9: 'Chapter 10' [i.e. 9 of published text]. 22 sheets. pp. 117-131.
- /10: 'Chapter 11' [i.e. 10 of published text]. 24 sheets. pp. 133-151.
- /11: 'Chapter 12' [i.e. 11 of published text]. 29 sheets. pp. 152-165.
- /12: 'Chapter 13' [i.e. 12 of published text]. 30 sheets. pp. 166-184.
- /13: 'Chapter 14' [i.e. 13 of published text]. 21 sheets. pp. 185-201.
- /14: 'Chapter 15' [i.e. 14 of published text]. 21 sheets. pp. 202-216.
- /15: 'Chapter 16' [i.e. 15 of published text]. 31 sheets. pp. 217-237.
- /16: 'Chapter 17' [i.e. 16 of published text]. 31 sheets. pp. 238-257.
- /17: 'Chapter 18' [i.e. 17 of published text]. 25 sheets. pp. 259-271.
- /18: 'Chapter 19' [i.e. 18 of published text]. 23 sheets. pp. 273-292.
- /19: 'Chapter 20' [i.e. 19 of published text]. 22 sheets. pp. 293-306.
- /20: 'Chapter 21' [i.e. 20 of published text]. 17 sheets. pp. 307-321.
- /21: 'Chapter 22' [i.e. 21 of published text]. 20 sheets. pp. 323-336.
- /22: 'Chapter 23' [i.e. 22 of published text]. 18 sheets. pp. 337-356.

MS 41,371 /1-11 Incomplete TS (1996).

- **/1:** Prologue. [5] sheets. **pp. ix-x**.
- /2: Chapter 1. 36 sheets. pp. 1-16.

- /3: Chapter 2. 21 sheets. **pp. 17-28**.
- /4: Chapter 3. 29 sheets. **pp. 29-44**.
- **/5:** Chapter 4. 19 sheets. **pp. 45-56**
- /**6:** Chapter 5. 22 sheets. **pp. 57-67**.
- /7: Chapter 6. 15 sheets. **pp. 68-80**.
- /8: Chapter 7. 30 sheets. pp. 81-99.
- /9: Chapter 8. 28 sheets. pp. 101-115.
- /10: Chapter 9. 23 sheets. pp. 117-131.
- /11 : Chapter 10. 25 sheets. pp. 133-151.

MS 41,372 /1-3 Additional TS copies with annotations.

- /1: Chapter 1. 38 sheets. **pp. 1-16**.
- /2: Chapter 2. 21 sheets. pp. 17-28.
- /3: Chapter 3. 29 sheets. pp. 29-44.

MS 41,373 /1-4 Additional TS copies.

- /1: Chapter 1. 27 sheets. **pp. 1-16** (with annotations).
- /2: Chapter 1. 27 sheets. pp. 1-16.
- /3: Chapter 2. [15] sheets. pp. 17-28.
- /4: Chapter 3. [25] sheets. **pp. 29-44**.

I.ii Fiction

I.ii.1 A Singer at the Wedding (1978)

A Singer at the Wedding (London: Hamish Hamilton, 1978) References in bold are to the published text.

MS 41,374 /1-2 TS with MS alterations (1963). Does not directly correspond to published text.

/1: 'Prologue', 8 chapters/parts (unnumbered). 70 sheets.

/2: 'Second Copy Revisions of Prologue'. 35 sheets.

MS 41,375 /1-3 MS with alterations and change sheets (1976).

/1: Chapters 1-6, including Prologue. ca. 508 leaves. pp. 5-155.

/2: Chapters 7-9. ca. 492 leaves. pp. 156-228.

/3: Chapters 10-12. ca. 418 leaves. pp. 229-285.

MS 41,376 /1-2 Complete TS with MS alterations.

/1: TS with corrections and proposals by Monk Gibbon (1976). *501 leaves.* **pp. 3-285**.

/2: TS with corrections sent to Hamish Hamilton Publishers (1977). *465 sheets.* **pp. 3-285**.

MS 41,377 Copy of *The Times* (London, 28 Jan 1978) containing an extract from *A Singer at the Wedding* (page 7). **pp. 74-83**.

I.ii.2 The Song of the Nightingale (1980)

The Song of the Nightingale (London: Hamish Hamilton, 1980) References in bold are to the published text.

MS 41,378 /1-3 MS with alterations and annotations by Mavis Arnold (1979).

/1: Chapters 1-4. ca. 535 leaves. **pp. 7-100**.

/2: Chapters 5-8. ca. 430 leaves. pp. 101-188.

/3: Chapters 9-12. ca. 373 leaves. pp. 189-272.

MS 41,379 Incomplete MS and notes for various chapters, with annotations by

Monk Gibbin and Mavis Arnold (1979). ca. 406 leaves.

MS 41,380 Complete TS with annotations by Mavis Arnold (1979). 293 leaves. pp. 5-272.

I.ii.3 The Muted Swan (1981)

The Muted Swan (London: Hamish Hamilton, 1981) References in bold are to the published text.

MS 41,381 /1-3 MS with alterations and change sheets (1980).

/1: Chapters 1-4. ca. 482 leaves. pp. 7-111.

/2: Chapters 5-8. ca. 405 leaves. pp. 112-199.

/3: Chapters 9-12. ca. 507 leaves. pp. 200-304.

MS 41,382 Complete TS sent to Hamish Hamilton Publishers (1980). 351

sheets. pp. 5-304.

MS 41,383 Manusript containing corrections and revisions of various chapters

(1980). 385 leaves.

I.ii.4 Running to Paradise (1983)

Running to Paradise (London: Hamish Hamilton, 1983) References in bold are to the published text.

MS 41,384 /1-3 MS with alterations and change sheets (annotations by Mavis Arnold).

/1: Chapters 1-6 (1981). ca. 620 leaves. pp. 7-112.

/2: Chapters 7-10 (1982). ca. 518 leaves. pp. 113-190.

/3: Chapters 11 and 12, revisions and additional material (1982). ca.

330 leaves. pp. 191-222.

MS 41,385 MS containing corrections and revisions of various chapters (1982).

ca. 402 leaves.

MS 41,386 Complete TS with annotations by author and Winifred Gibbon

(1982). 311 leaves. pp. 5-222.

II Other works

II.i The Fan of Judgment (1993)

Unpublished novel

MS 41,387 MS with alterations and change sheets. 'Chapters 1-6'. ca. 539

leaves.

MS 41,388 /1-3 TS with annotations.

/1: 'Chapters 1-3'. 62 sheets.

/2: 'Chapter 1'. 7 sheets.

/3: Incomplete TS including pp. 24-27, 33, 36-55, 69-79, 88-111,

and additional unnumbered pages. 62 sheets.

MS 41,389 /1-7 Various unnumbered and incomplete MSS (composed on reverse of various documents).

/1: 'Part 1: Chapters 1-5'. ca. 250 sheets.

/2: 'Part 2: Chapters 1-6'. ca. 320 sheets.

/3: Partial chapters and notes. ca. 500 sheets.

/4: Partial chapters and notes. ca. 450 sheets.

/5: Partial chapters and notes. ca. 150 sheets.

/6: Preliminaries including coversheet, partial Contents pages and

Introduction. 7 sheets.

/7: TS containing 'Suggested Ideas'. 6 sheets.

II.ii A Most Confounded Tory (1995)

Play involving Jonathan Swift

MS 41,390 /1-3 Complete TS of play.

/1: Act 1: Scenes 1-8. *64 sheets*.

/2: Act 2: Scenes 1-7 (and Prologue). 48 sheets.

/3: Loose pages. 3 sheets.

III Journalistic work

III.i TCD Miscellany (edited by Arnold)

MS 41,391 'Thunder in the Afternoon', short story by Arnold. 3 Feb 1961. 6

copies.

MS 41,392 Issue for 10 Feb 1961. 6 copies.

MS 41,393 Issue for 24 Feb 1961. *3 copies*.

MS 41,394 'Modigliani', by Arnold. 10 Mar 1961. *5 copies*.

III.ii Political articles by Arnold (1960s-1984)

MS 41,395 Mid-1960s-70. Business and Finance and Hibernia (written under

the pseudonym 'Francis Grose'). ca. 400 leaves.

MS 41,396 1972. Articles from Australia and Asia. 24 items.

MS 41,397 1972-5. *Kilkenny People. ca. 300 leaves.*

MS 41,398 1973. Election Notebook newscuttings. *20 items*.

MS 41,399 1973-4. Dáil Notebook. *ca. 70 leaves*.

MS 41,400 1974-9. Newscuttings of 'Japan Reports' and 'The Russian

Experience'. 6 items.

MS 41,401 1975-7. Irish Medical Times. 'Politics of Medicine' series and

related correspondence. 36 items.

MS 41,402 1981. Election Notebook, related material re women and politics. *3 items*.

MS 41,403 1984. Partial article entitled 'One island: two nations' in *Ambassador*. *1 item*.

III.iii Charles Haughey (1974-2002)

MS 41,404 1974-2002. Folder entitled 'Haughey' containing newspaper and magazine excerpts, 'Fine Gael Draft Constitution and Rules 1978', notes. *ca. 52 items*.

MS 41,405 1977-86. Folder entitled 'Haughey: Post-Lynch' containing various speeches and statements by Haughey, newspaper and magazine excerpts. 15 items.

MS 41,406 1977-99. Folder entitled 'Haughey Newspaper Articles' containing newscuttings, 1977 list of Labour Dáil frontbenchers, Dáil debate report booklet dated 27 Oct 1992, RTE remittance advice slip 1989, documents re decline in island population in Ireland. *10 items*.

MS 41,407 1980-87. Folder entitled '1982-3: Haughey Heaves' containing newscuttings. *13 items*.

MS 41,408 1982-97. Folder entitled 'Haughey' containing newscuttings, notes, Progressive Democrats press release re Haughey, TS of Ch 2 of Haughey: His Life and Unlucky Deeds. 23 items.

MS 41,409 1990-2001. Miscellaneous newscuttings. 5 items.

MS 41,410 1996-9. Folder entitled 'Haughey' containing newscuttings, correspondences with Christopher Ryan and Anthony Coughlan. 35 items.

MS 41,411 1997-8. Folder entitled 'Haughey' containing newscuttings. *17 items*.

III.iv Northern Ireland (1980-2000)

MS 41,412 /1-18 1980-1. Documents relating to Northern Ireland and the Taoiseach, Charles Haughey.

/1: Address by Taoiseach at Fianna Fáil Ard-Fheis. 16 Feb 1980. *3 copies and uncorrected proofs.*

/2: Transcript of Panorama interview with Taoiseach. 9 Jun 1980.

16 sheets.

/3: Speech by the Taoiseach. 25 Jun 1980. 28 sheets.

/4: Speech by the Taoiseach. 27 Jul 1980. 11 sheets.

/5: Pamphlet by New Ulster Political Research Group. Sept 1980. 6 leaves.

/6: Document re H-block protests. Oct 1980. *4 leaves*.

/7: Fortnight magazine No. 178. Oct- Nov 1980. 7 sheets.

/8: National H-Block Committee press release. 18 Nov 1980. 5 sheets.

/9: Government statement. 4 Dec 1980. 2 sheets.

/10: Reply to parliamentary question. 4 Dec 1980. 4 sheets.

/11: Dáil questions and replies. 10 Dec 1980. 5 sheets.

/12: Statement by the Taoiseach. 11 Dec 1980. 14 sheets.

/13: Dáil minutes. 11 Dec 1980. 11 sheets.

/14: National H-Block Committee press statement. 15 Dec 1980. 3 sheets.

/15: Speech by Garret Fitzgerald. Undated. 11 sheets.

/16: Assorted notes. 15 sheets.

/17: Statement by Secretary of State for Northern Ireland, Humphrey Atkins. 30 Jun 1981. 5 sheets.

/**18:** Address by Taoiseach at Fianna Fáil Ard-Fheis. 14 Feb 1981. *55 sheets*.

MS 41,413

1981. Folder entitled 'David Watt: Chatham Conference 1981'
containing papers and background material for 'A Study Conference
to Explore Models of Political Co-operation'. 25-28 Mar 1981. Also
containing a copy of *The United Irishman* Feb 1956. *ca. 350 sheets*.

MS 41,414

1984-5. Newscuttings re Northern Ireland including *The Sunday Press* and *The Irish Times*. Dating from Dec 1984-Jan 1985. 4 items.

MS 41,415 1985. Folder entitled 'Airlie House Conference on Northern

Ireland' containing discussion papers (including paper by Arnold) and background materials. 6-9 Jan 1985. *ca.* 80 sheets.

MS 41,416 1990. Newscuttings re Haughey and proposed amendment to Articles 2 and 3 of Constitution. *3 items*.

MS 41,417 1995. Copy of Free Ireland: Towards a Lasting Peace by Gerry Adams. ca. 155 sheets.

MS 41,418

1996. Folder entitled 'Adams, Sinn Féin, Peace Process' containing newspaper extracts, Arnold article 'The Mandate and the Arms', Dáil questions and Taoiseach's replies re peace process. 21 items.

MS 41,419 1996-2001. Folder entitled 'Adams and Sinn Féin/IRA' containing newspaper extracts. 22 items.

MS 41,420 1998. Folder entitled 'Northern Ireland: The Agreement' containing newspaper extracts, a pamphlet entitled 'Agreement Reached in the Multi-Party negotiations', notes. 31 items.

MS 41,421 1998. Folder entitled 'Dick Walsh BA Ref' containing article by Walsh on Northern Ireland with reference to Arnold. *1 item*.

MS 41,422 2000. Folder entitled 'Trimble Oct-Nov 2000' containing newspaper extracts. *13 items*.

III.v Stardust fire (1981)

MS 41,423 Copies of newspapers and newscuttings re fire, including *Irish Independent*, *The Irish Times* and *The Irish People*. Dating from 16 Feb - 5 Apr 1981. *40 sheets*.

MS 41,424 /1-14 Documents including Dáil reports, statements and minutes re fire.

/1: Dáil 'Notice of Motion' and 'Notice of Amendments to Motion' by Dr. Noel Browne. 16 Feb and 17 Feb 1981. 6 sheets.

/2: Dáil statement made by Frank Cluskey TD, Leader of the Labour Party. 17 Feb 1981. 2 *sheets*.

/3: Dáil statement made by the Taoiseach, Charles J. Haughey. 17 Feb 1981. 2 sheets.

/4: Dáil revision sheet. 18 Feb 1981. 3 sheets.

/5: Dáil speech by Ray Burke TD (2 copies). 18 Feb 1981. 17

sheets.

/**6:** Dáil reports by Arnold. 18 Feb 1981 (3). *13 sheets*.

/7: Seanad speech by Ray Burke TD. 19 Feb 1981. 7 sheets

/8: Dáil minutes. 18 Feb 1981. 46 sheets (plus MS notes, 6 sheets).

/9: Dáil minutes. 4 Mar 1981. 6 sheets.

/10: Dáil minutes. 18 Mar 1981. 8 sheets.

/11: Dáil minutes. Various undated extracts. 6 sheets.

/12: Report re meeting on 14 Mar 1981. 3 sheets.

/13: Document re Stardust background and latest position. Undated. *4 sheets*.

/14: Document re tribunal legislation in Act of 1921. 2 sheets.

MS 41,425 /1-3 Dáil questions and order papers re fire.

/1: Dáil questions. Dating from 18 Feb to 7 Apr 1981. 16 sheets.

/2: Document re response to Dáil questions. 3 sheets.

/3: Seanad order paper. 19 Feb 1981. 2 sheets.

MS 41,426 Correspondences re fire including copies of correspondences

between the Taoiseach (Charles Haughey) and TDs, the Ceann Comhairle (Padraig Faulker) and TDs, and a press release by Stardust committee. Dating from 5 Mar to 13 Apr 1981. *15 items*.

MS 41,427 Assorted MS notes re fire. 49 sheets.

III.vi Divorce, contraception and abortion (1971-2000)

MS 41,428 1971-9. Material re contraception legislation including

newscuttings, Dáil reports, family planning bills, TD speeches,

related correspondence. 54 items.

MS 41,429 1973. Copy of judgement in case of Mary Magee v. the Attorney

General and the Revenve Commissioners (re contraception

legislation). 4 items.

MS 41,430	1976 . Articles re divorce. 4 items.
MS 41,431	1982-3 . Material re abortion referendum including newscuttings, statements by TDs, and a booklet issued by the anti-amendment campaign edited by Mavis Arnold. <i>27 items</i> .
MS 41,432	1983 . Additional material re abortion referendum including newscuttings, leaflets and information from SPUC, notes, statements by TDs. <i>31 items</i> .
MS 41,433	2000 . Newscutting re abortion. <i>1 item</i> .

III.vii Other political material (1972-2001)

Arranged chronologically

MS 41,434	1972-2001. Miscellaneous newscuttings. 9 items.
MS 41,435	1973-82 . Documents re Fine Gael including lists of TDs, shadow cabinet and copy of <i>National Democrat</i> . <i>10 items</i> .
MS 41,436	1974 . Newscuttings re various social issues. <i>13 items</i> .
MS 41,437	1981 . Re Irish General Election, including newscuttings, Fianna Fáil and Fine Gael programmes, documents re cost of proposals, and Fine Gael speech on Northern Ireland. <i>5 items</i> .
MS 41,438	1982 . Includes Dáil voting list for 27 Jan, addresses and speeches by government ministers, Agreement reached by Haughey and Gregory, government press releases, and various MS notes by Arnold. <i>10 items</i> .
MS 41,439	1982 . Folder entitled 'Pat O'Connor' containing newspaper extracts, Dáil minutes, and MS notes. <i>5 items</i> .
MS 41,440	1984 . Includes 2 addresses by Gemma Hussey, Minister for Education, 1984. <i>6 items</i> .
MS 41,441	1984-5 . Newscuttings re Desmond O'Malley and Fianna Fáil. 8 <i>items</i> .
MS 41,442	1986 . Folder entitled 'Tolstoy, Macmillan, Phibbs, Tebbit' containing newscuttings and material re conservative party, Cossacks and Lord Stockton. <i>23 items</i> .

MS 41,443	1987 . Papers, documents, MS notes re Patrick MacGill Summer School (Irish Constitution). <i>12 items</i> .
MS 41,444	1990. Copies of Irish Independent labelled 'Lenihan'. 7 items.
MS 41,445	1990. Progressive Democrats Factfile. 1 item.
MS 41,446	1990 . Newscuttings including Irish presidential election. <i>5 items</i> .
MS 41,447	1994-8 . Folder entitled 'RTE' containing newscuttings. <i>11 items</i> .
MS 41,448	1996-9 . Folder entitled 'Defence' containing reports on defence forces, The Carter Centre magazine, MS notes. <i>14 items</i> .
MS 41,449	1997 . Folder entitled 'RTE Primetime' containing correspondence with Ursula Hannigan. <i>3 items</i> .
MS 41,450	1998. 'The Coffee Circle Papers' by Democratic Left. 2 items.
MS 41,451	1998-2000. Newscuttings from Daily Telegraph. 9 items.
MS 41,452	1999 . Folder entitled 'Sheedy/O'Flaherty' containing newscuttings re Sheedy case. <i>34 items</i> .
MS 41,453	2000 . Newscuttings re O'Flaherty and European Investment Bank position. <i>27 items</i> .
MS 41,454	2000 . Folder entitled 'McDowell and Progressives' containing newscuttings. 6 <i>items</i> .
MS 41,455	2000 . Newscuttings re economy. 5 items.

IV Telephone tapping material (1982-1986)

MS 41,456 /1-5 1982-6. High Court documents re case (bound volumes).

/1: Case for Council to Draft Proceedings. May 1984. 2 items.

/2: Documents re discovery. 13 items.

/3: Book of Pleadings. 1984-6. 9 items.

/4: Books of Correspondence. 12 items.

/5: Copies of documents (booklet) including letter from Chief State Solicitor, Subpoena Duces Tecum, Subpoena Ad Test. *3 items*.

MS 41,457 /1-28 1982-1986. High Court documents (mainly loose copies of

material in above bound volumes)

- /1: Copy consent of Arnold. 2 items.
- /2: Fianna Fáil Press Release. 19 Jan 1983. 2 items.
- /3: Statements including Patrick Laughlin and Charles Haughey 20-1 Jan 1983. 7 items.
- /4: Statement of Michael Noonan. 20 Jan 1983. 7 items.
- **/5:** Extracts from Dáil debates 1949-72 and related case law. *4 items*.
- **6:** Postal warrents and related documents. 13 items.
- /7: Copy telephone contracts. 4 items.
- /8: Interrogatories and answers. 7 items.
- /9: Plenary summons. Jun/Jul 1984. 5 items.
- /10: Notice for Particulars. 5 items.
- /11: Replies to Notice for Particulars, etc. 9 items.
- /12: Notice of Motion. 20 items.
- /13: Affidavits. 31 items.
- /**14:** Exhibit 'A'. 6 items.
- /15: Defence. 3 Sept 1985. 4 items.
- /16: Notice to admit facts. 24 June 1986. 3 items.
- /17: Statement of Claim. 9 items.
- /18: Notice to Produce. 4 items.
- /19: Hickey, Beauchamp, Kirwan and O'Reilly correspondence. *ca.* 40 items.
- /20: Request for Certificate of Funds. 25 July 1986. 1 item.
- /21: High Court orders including subpoenas. 8 items.
- /22: Case for council to advise. 3 items.
- /23: Advice on proofs.6 items.

/24: Statements of the plaintiffs. 5 items.

/25: Opening statement of plaintiffs. 1 item.

/26: Analysis of defendant's discovery. 3 items.

/27: 'Late Late Show': 28 Jan 1984. 2 items.

/28: Curriculum Vitae and accounts of plaintiffs. 8 items.

MS 41,458 Additional and partially completed copies of documents and

coversheets listed above. 23 items.

MS 41,459 Folder entitled 'Arnold/Kennedy vrs the State: Cases to Council,

Malone Case Material' containing additional copies of documents listed above (some with MS annotations), notes. *ca 50 items*.

V Theatre

V.i Dun Laoghaire Theatre Project (1993-1995)

MS 41,460 Folder entitled 'Dun Laoghaire Corporation' containing mainly correspondences with Dun Laoghaire County Council and various government ministers re theatre project. Dating Jan 1993-Jul 1994. *ca. 75 sheets.*

MS 41,461 Folder entitled 'Citee' containing various correspondences and minutes of the Dun Laoghaire Theatre Project meetings. Dating Jan 1993-Sept 1995. *ca.* 65 sheets.

MS 41,462 Folder entitled 'Arts Council and Tourism' containing mainly correspondences with The Arts Council, Dublin Tourism, and Bord Fáilte. Dating Jan 1993-Feb 1994. ca. 45 sheets.

MS 41,463 Folder entitled 'Valerie' containing correspondences with Valerie Mulvin of McCullough Mulvin Architects, maps, and plans. Dating May-Sept 1993. *ca. 30 sheets*.

MS 41,464 Folder entitled 'Correspondence: Kevin O'Sullivan, Betty Coffey, Ronnie Tallon, Jane Dillon Byrne'. Dating Nov 1993-Mar 1995. *ca.* 25 sheets.

MS 41,465 Folder entitled 'Plans' containing plans and maps for proposed Dun Laoghaire Pavilion site. Dated Jan 1995. *ca. 20 sheets*.

MS 41,466 Folder entitled 'Council Submission' containing material relating to

deputation with County Council. Dating May 1994 to May 1995. 10 sheets.

MS 41,467 Folder entitled 'An Taisce' containing documents concerning appeal re Pavilion development. Dating May-Aug 1995. *ca.* 40 *sheets*.

MS 41,468 Folder entitled 'Iain Macintosh' containing mainly correspondences with Iain Mackintosh of Theatre Projects Consultants. Dating Aug 1994-Jul 1995. *ca. 20 sheets*.

MS 41,469 Folder entitled 'Planning Appeal Hearing' containing related documents. Dating Feb-Sept 1995. *ca. 35 sheets*.

MS 41,470 Folder entitled 'Fire Safety Specifications'. Dated Aug 1995. ca. 20 sheets.

MS 41,471 Folder entitled 'Basic Documents and Extra Copies'. Dating May-Aug 1995. *ca.* 40 sheets.

MS 41,472 Assorted material relating to Theatre Project including feasibility study, St. Helen's House Preservation Group proposal, Dun Laoghaire-Rathdown Arts Newsletters, newscuttings, various theatre programmes. Dating 1993-1995. *ca.* 55 sheets.

V.ii Theatre programmes, etc.

MS 41,473 Gate Theatre. Dating Oct 1937-Jan 1940. 7 items.
MS 41,474 Gaiety Theatre. Dating Mar 1941-Sept 1953. 39 items.
MS 41,475 Photographs including autographed photograph of Capra Cullen and scenes from Puck Fair. Dated 1943. 8 items.
MS 41,476 Newspaper excerpt and photocopies of theatre reviews relating to Puck Fair and ballet in Gaiety Theatre. 3 sheets.
MS 41,477 Correspondence with Catherine Gyll re theatre programmes. Apr-Jul 2000. 7 sheets.